
CITY OF LAKE GENEVA 

626 GENEVA STREET 

LAKE GENEVA, WI 

 

PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 

MONDAY JANUARY 21, 2019 - 6:00 PM 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

Agenda 
 

   

1. Meeting called to order by Tom Hartz. 

 

2. Roll Call. 

 

3. Approve Minutes of the December 17, 2018 Plan Commission meeting as distributed. 

  

4. Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this 

agenda, except for public hearing items.  Comments will be limited to five (5) minutes. 

 

5. Acknowledgment of Correspondence. 

 

6. Downtown Design Review: 

 

a. Application by 737 W. Main Street LLP, for the request to install an on building 

sign and a revised awning to the exterior of the property, located at 737 W. Main 

St., in the Business Central (BC) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZOP00273. 

 

b. Application by 725 W. Main Street LLP, for the request to install an on awning 

sign and a revised awning to the exterior of the property, located at 725 W. Main 

St., in the Business Central (BC) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZOP0276. 

 

7. Public Hearing and Recommendation of a General Development Plan (GDP) filed by 

Terence Pisano, 201 Broad St., Lake Geneva, WI 53147, for the property located at 333 

Center St. The applicant is requesting to relocate the existing building currently located at 

832 Geneva St. and to utilize exceptions to the site setbacks and site zoning restrictions. 

The property is located in the Neighborhood Office (NO) zoning district, Tax Key No. 

ZOP00139. 

 

8. Public Hearing and Recommendation of a Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) filed by 

Terence Pisano, 201 Broad St., Lake Geneva, WI 53147, for the property located at 333 

Center St. The applicant is requesting to relocate the existing building currently located at 

832 Geneva St. and to utilize exceptions to the site setbacks and site zoning restrictions. 

The property is located in the Neighborhood Office (NO) zoning district, Tax Key No. 

ZOP00139. 

 



9. Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for the Precise Implementation 

Plan (PIP) filed by Daniel E. Schuld, 281 Yerkes Ave, Hampshire, IL 60140, requesting 

the change of use for the building at 727 Geneva St, for a Brewery, Tap Room, & Gift 

Shop, to include a building addition, and renovations to the existing exterior deck and 

patio, located in the Planned Development (PD) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZOP00157. 

 

10. Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application to amend the existing Precise 

Implementation Plan (PIP) filed by Oakfire Properties LLC, for the Oakfire Restaurant, 

requesting to change the second floor deck area to install a roof structure and roll up 

temporary windows, located in the Central Business (CB) zoning district at 831Wrigley 

Dr., Tax Key No. ZOP00340. 

 

11. Continuation of the Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for the 

General Development Plan (GDP) filed by Omega Homes, 201 O’Connor Dr. Suite 101, 

Elkhorn, WI 53121, requesting a Planned Development of 58 Single Family Homes at the 

property on LaSalle Street, also known as the Vistas of Lake Geneva (formerly Regent 

Hills subdivision), located in the Multi-Family – 8 (MR-8) zoning district, Tax Key No. 

ZA424700001. 

 

12. Continuation of the Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for the 

Conditional Use Permit (CUP) filed by House Around the Corner LLC., 3389 South 

Shore Dr., Delavan, WI 53115, requesting a (CUP) to Raze or Remove the existing 

building located at 832 Geneva Street, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, located in Central 

Business (CB) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZOP00252. 

 

13. Continuation of the Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for the 

General Development Plan (GDP) filed by House Around the Corner LLC., 3389 South 

Shore Dr., Delavan, WI 53115, requesting a Planned Development to construct a 5600 

square foot commercial building at 832 Geneva Street, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, located 

in Central Business (CB) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZOP00252. 

 

14. Adjournment. 
 

 

 

QUORUM OF CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS MAY BE PRESENT 

Requests from persons with disabilities, who need assistance in order to participate in this meeting, should be made to the City Clerk's office, in order for appropriate 

Accommodations. 

Posted 1/16/2019 



1 of 4 

December 17, 2018 Plan Commission Minutes 

 

PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 
MONDAY, DECEMBER 17, 2018 – 6:00 PM 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 
 

Mayor Hartz called the meeting to order at 6:05 p.m.  

 

Roll Call.  Present: Mayor Hartz, John Gibbs, Sarah Hill, Ted Horne, Ann Esarco, Michael Krajovic.  Absent (Excused) 

Alderman Doug Skates, Building and Zoning Administrator Walling. Also Present: City Planner Slavney, City Attorney 

Draper, Building & Zoning Administrative Assistant Follensbee 

 

Approve Minutes of the November 17
th

 Plan Commission meeting as distributed.  

Horne/Gibbs motion to approve.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this agenda, except for public 

hearing items. Comments will be limited to 5 minutes.  

 

Acknowledgement of Correspondence.  

Correspondence was received from Kristin Stone, 233 Center Street, sharing concerns for the present building at 832 

Geneva Street and any building being considered for this location. This correspondence was not received for the 

November 19
th
 meeting due to an incorrect email address. Correspondence was received from Marilyn Ellman, resident of 

the Lake Shore Village Condominium Association, asking for postponement of the Public Hearing for the Summerhaven 

Phase II & III Development request. Correspondence was received by Penelope Jones, 1321 Dodge Street, and Loretta 

Shem, 499 Manning Way, in favor of the Conditional Use request at 846 Madison Street. Correspondence was also 

received from Joe Fusinato, 202 Summerhaven Lane, sharing concerns for the Summerhaven Development request. All 

correspondence has been distributed to the Plan Commission and the City Council. 

 

Downtown Design Review 

 

6.a. Application by Oakfire Properties LLC, for the Oakfire Restaurant, a request to install vinyl screening & 

window on the second floor exterior dining area, located at 831Wrigley Dr., in the Business Central (BC) zoning 

district, Tax Key No. ZOP00340. 

 David Scotney, 1551 Orchard Lane, owner of Oakfire, presented the application request. Planner Slavney stated the 

vinyl roll downs are a temporary use and suggested a sunset clause to remove the roll downs by May 1
st
 as a part of the 

temporary approval. Slavney expects to see another application for a different roof over the pergola as depicted in 

photo. Mayor Hartz said the application would be an amendment to the PIP. 

 

Esarco/ Horne motion to approve the temporary installation of vinyl roll downs with a sunset clause to be removed by 

May 1, 2019 and include all staff recommendations and fact finding. 

Roll Call:  Hartz, Gibbs, Hill, Horne, Esarco, Krajovic “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

7. Conceptual review which is step 2 of a Planned Development process, filed by Patrick & Rachel Lynch, 30715 

Cedar Dr., Burlington, WI 53105, requesting to reduce the current lake shore setback in the Estate 

Residential -1 (ER-1) land use zoning district, at 940 Maytag Rd., Lake Geneva, WI, 53147, Tax Key No. 

ZCE00005. 
 Jason Bernard, Lake Geneva Architects, representing Patrick & Rachel Lynch, presented the concept plan, asking for 

the SR-4 setbacks in the ER-1 zoning district and revised lake shore setback. Slavney explained the Planned 

Development process would give the Plan Commission the ability to add requirements if needed and allow the 

consideration of various factors for the project. Commissioner Gibbs asked if the owner received feedback from any 

neighbors. Owner, Patrick Lynch, 940 Maytag Road, met with owner at 930 Maytag to discuss the concept plan. The 

owners of 950 Maytag Road are there part time. Commissioner Hill is in favor of the revised setback. Commissioner 

Krajovic asked if city has vegetation regulations. Slavney said the city can suggest requirements. Krajovic stated the 

length of yard may not be as important as the quality of vegetation. He recommended the Plan Commission should 

consider ways to protect the water and the aesthetics of the vegetation. Hill asked about the existing trees on the 



2 of 4 

December 17, 2018 Plan Commission Minutes 

 

property. Slavney said one tree may be in the footprint of the new porch. Hartz suggested native planting along the 

lakeshore and a possible buffer around the house for a yard for the kids to play. 

 

 

8. Conceptual review which is step 2 of a Planned Development process filed by Terence Pisano, 201 Broad St, 

Lake Geneva, for the possible relocation of the existing Brick & Mortar building currently located at 832 

Geneva St., to the property at 333 Center St., with exceptions to the request which is to reduce the current 

setbacks in the Neighborhood Office (NO) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZOP00139. 

 Chris Pisano, engineer, on behalf of the owner, Terence Pisano, presented the concept plan to move the current 

building at 832 Geneva Street 2 ½ blocks to 333 Center Street. No tree will be disturbed in the move except for some 

trees on the 333 Center Street parcel. Any trees removed from the landscape footprint would be replaced or moved 

back into place. Only one electrical line on the Center street location would be moved. 333 Center Street is zoned 

Neighborhood Office with mixed use so the first floor will be commercial use with a new walk out basement and the 

second floor will be a residential apartment with attic space. There will be a new foundation for this building. 

Slavney stated the flexibilities needed for this Planned Development. Hill likes the plan and asked about liability for 

this project. Mr. Pisano said the Structural Moving Company has the proper insurance during the moving process. 

Terence Pisano, owner of 333 Center Street, explained the system used regarding the weight of the building when it 

is being moved. Hartz stated the city could ask for a bond to cover any road damage if this Planned Development 

gets approved. Attorney Draper said a Developers Agreement would be established to protect certain infrastructure 

such as the roads. Commissioners Esarco, Horne and Gibbs said they like the conceptual plan. Hartz said this 

building would be a nice transition to the neighboring lots. 

 

 

9.  Continuation of the Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for the General Development 

Plan (GDP) filed by House Around the Corner LLC., 3389 South Shore Dr., Delavan, WI 53115, requesting a 

Planned Development to construct a 5600 square foot commercial building at 832 Geneva Street, Lake 

Geneva, WI 53147, located in Central Business (CB) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZOP00252. 

 

 Applicant has requested to continue the Public Hearing. 

 

Hartz/Horne motion to continue the Public Hearing to the next Plan Commission meeting. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

10.  Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for the Conditional Use Permit (CUP) filed by House 

Around the Corner LLC., 3389 South Shore Dr., Delavan, WI 53115, requesting a CUP to Raze or Remove 

the existing building located at 832 Geneva Street, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, located in Central Business (CB) 

zoning district, Tax Key No. ZOP00252. 

 

 Applicant has requested to continue the Public Hearing. 

 

Hartz/Horne motion to continue the Public Hearing to the next Plan Commission meeting. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

11.  Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) filed by Michelle 

Lundquist., 7929-48
th

 Ave, Kenosha, WI 53142, requesting a CUP to continue the existing Commercial Animal 

Boarding land use at the building located at 846 Madison St., Lake Geneva, WI 53147, located in General 

Industrial (GI) zoning district, Tax Key Nos. ZYUP00033 & ZYUP00033A. 

 Michelle & Eric Lundquist, 7929-48
th
 Ave, Kenosha, WI, presented their request. Hartz asked how many dogs would 

be possible on-site. Ms. Lundquist is asking for a 40 dog limit which includes dog boarding, daycare, training & 

grooming. Hill asked about improvements & a timeline. Mr. Lundquist said they will paint, redo the roof, and work 

on the vegetation plus any needed interior updates and hopes to take occupancy within 60 days. Hartz asked about 

the number of staff members and what would take place if there is an issue overnight. Ms. Lundquist said there 

would be 5 staff members. Her parents live 5 minutes out of town and her sister has a business in town so either party 

would be available. Slavney asked when and where dogs would be outside and for how long. Ms. Lundquist said 



3 of 4 

December 17, 2018 Plan Commission Minutes 

 

daycare dogs would be in playgroups to be rotated indoor and outdoor, weather permitting. When outside, the dogs 

would be on the west side of the building. 

 Speaker #1: Candie Kirchberg, 917 Marshall Street, shared her support of this Conditional Use Permit. 

 Speaker #2: Cierra French, owner of 847 Madison Street, shared her support of this Conditional Use Permit. 

 Speaker #3: Alex Kondos, 10608 Main Street, Richmond, IL, current manager of The Dog Spot, shared her support 

of this Conditional Use Permit. 

Speaker #4: Terry O’Neill, lives 400’ away, shared his concerns and opposition of this Conditional Use Permit. 

Speaker #5: Bill Huntress, 1015 Pleasant Street, shared his concerns for the current operation at this location and 

hopes the next owner will clean up and take care of the place. 

Speaker #6: Christina Clements, 949 Madison Street, shared her concern of the current dog barking, but is not 

opposed to this request. 

Speaker #7: Mary Jo Fesenmaier, 1085 S Lake Shore Drive, suggests adding a condition to place a yearly review for 

this permit request so neighbors have a process to weigh in. 

 

Horne/Gibbs motion to close the Public Hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Hill/Esarco motion to approve the limited Conditional Use Permit with a condition for the number of dogs for overnight 

stay limited to 10 and include all staff recommendations and fact finding. 

Roll Call:  Hartz, Gibbs, Hill, Horne, Esarco, Krajovic voting “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

12.  Public Hearing and Recommendation on an General Development Plan (GDP) for the Summerhaven 

Subdivision Phases II & III filed by McMurr II, LLC., 351 Hubbard, Suite 610, Chicago, IL 60054, for the 

properties located in the Summerhaven Subdivision on Lake Geneva Blvd., Lake Geneva, WI 53147, located 

in Planned Development (PD) zoning district, Tax Key Nos. ZSUM00001 thru ZSUM00247. 

 Jim Howe, attorney at Godfrey Law Firm in Elkhorn, representing McMurr II LLC, presented the request. Gibbs 

asked about the single entrance to the subdivision. Howe stated the southern access road, presently, a fire safety 

access, will eventually become a 2
nd

 entrance for the Phase III GDP. Hartz asked if there are as-builts for the 

improvements done to the property so far. Howe said the As-builts will be a part of the PIP for Phase II and Phase 

III. Hartz referenced 2 house plans: The Bombay and The Pine Ridge – which depict garages that stick out 

disproportionately to the house. Hartz asked the developer to reconsider these two layouts. Hartz also asked if the 

sidewalk on Wells Street can be replaced. Krajovic asked if there are guidelines, based on the density of this 

development, for greenspace or playground. Slavney explained the ordinance enables the city to require the 

dedication of land whenever additional residential units are created or a fee will be collected in lieu of land. The city 

does have the ability with any Conditional Use or Planned Development to require private recreational facilities. 

Esarco suggested enhancing the community by creating a play area for children. Gibbs recommended placing a 

tracking pad at the curb cut-out on Wells Street since there is mud on the sidewalk and road. Howe will relay these 

suggestions to his client. 

 Speaker #1: Al Kupsik, 717 S Lake Shore Drive, representing the Lake Shore Village Condo Association, shared 

concern regarding the flooding on the south side of Condo Association coming from Summerhaven. Kupsik 

identified other concerns such as erosion control, landscaping and who will maintain the retention ponds. Kupsik 

requested correspondence with the developer or documentation concerning the maintenance of the retention ponds, 

updates on the erosion plan and flooding issues. 

 Speaker #2: Helen Radloff, lives on south end of Lake Shore Village, shared concerns of flooding, landscaping and 

erosion control, and asked for an extension to review this project request. 

 Speaker #3: Bruce Jaloszynski, 870 Lake Geneva Blvd, shared concerns regarding increased traffic at the southern 

access road and the work hours for construction during the week and weekends. 

  

Hill/Krajovic motion to close the Public Hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor Hartz listed a number of issues to be addressed in the PIP application: flooding issues for properties on the 

west and south side of the development, proper erosion control, Developers Agreement regarding retention pond 

maintenance, landscaping, a small recreational area for children and As-builts for the current improvements. 

 

Hartz/Esarco motion to approve the General Development Plan and include all staff recommendations and fact finding. 



4 of 4 

December 17, 2018 Plan Commission Minutes 

 

Roll Call:  Hartz, Gibbs, Hill, Horne, Esarco, Krajovic voting “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

13. Continuation of the Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for the General Development 

Plan (GDP) filed by Omega Homes, 201 O’Connor Dr. Suite 101, Elkhorn, WI 53121, requesting a Planned 

Development of 58 Single Family Homes at the property on LaSalle Street, also known as the Vistas of Lake 

Geneva (formerly Regent Hills subdivision), located in the Multi-Family – 8 (MR-8) zoning district, Tax Key 

No. ZA424700001. 

 

Applicant has requested to continue the Public Hearing. 

 

Hartz/Hill motion to continue the Public Hearing to the next Plan Commission meeting. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

14.  Public Hearing and Recommendation for proposed changes to amend the existing Ordinance 18-09 for 

Tourist Rooming House guidelines. Applicant: City of Lake Geneva. 

 Slavney presented the revisions to the Tourist Rooming House Ordinance with suggestions from staff and their 

experience with the Ordinance this past year. 

 

8:25 pm - Commissioner Hill left the City Chambers 

8:34 pm – Hill returned to the City Chambers 

 

 Horne asked what happens when owners transfer properties to one another. Plan Commission discussed a transfer of 

property from one LLC to another. Hartz offered his revisions to be reflected in the Ordinance Amendment. 

  

Speaker #1: Doug Wheaton, on behalf of the Lakes Area Realtors Association, 1516 North County Club Pkwy, 

Elkhorn, shared a statement from the Lakes Area Realtors Association, with concerns regarding the Knox Box 

provisions in the proposed Ordinance Amendment.  

 

Plan Commission discussed the Knox Box provisions, stating the Knox Box would be used to gain entry to 

properties for emergencies and required inspections which will be reflected in the revised language of the 

amendment.  

 

Gibbs/Esarco motion to close the Public Hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Hartz/Gibbs motion to recommend the city attorney write up the Amendment to the Ordinance, adopting the current edits 

in red and any additional edits made here tonight and then send the Amendment to the Ordinance directly to the Council.   

 

Roll Call:  Hartz, Gibbs, Hill, Horne, Esarco, Krajovic voting “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

15. Potential Code Amendment Discussion to allow set-back averaging from ordinary mean hi-water line from 

the lake front. 

 Slavney presented the potential Code Amendment. A Plan Commission discussion followed.   

 

 

16.  Adjournment.  Hill/Esarco motion to adjourn at 9:00 p.m. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

        

/s/ Brenda Follensbee, Building & Zoning Administrative Assistant 
 

THESE ARE NOT OFFICIAL MINUTES UNTIL APPROVED BY THE PLAN COMMISSION 



 1 

STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: January 21, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description: 

The applicant is submitting an application for Downtown Design Review for the request to install a Sign 

& Awning to the exterior of the building above the public right of way at 737 W. Main Street Tax Key 

No. ZOP00273.  

 

The City reviews all exterior alteration in the CB zoning district to confirm that they conform to the 

Downtown Design standards, particularly quantity, size, and color requirements.  

 

Proposed colors correspond within the permitted downtown guidelines. 

 

Staff Recommendations:  

The colors submitted have been reviewed and comply with the Historic Colors of the historic color 

palette. 

 

Staff recommends approval of the Awning installation request as submitted. 

Applicant: 

737 W. Main Street LLP 

PO Box 460 

Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

Request: 

737 W. Main Street  

Downtown Design Review for Sign & Awning 

installation  

Tax Key No. ZOP00273 

Agenda Item #6A 









STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: January 21, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description: 

The applicant is submitting an application for Downtown Design Review for the request to 

install a Sign & Awning to the exterior of the building above the public right of way at 725 W. 

Main Street Tax Key No. ZOP00276.  

 

The City reviews all exterior alteration in the CB zoning district to confirm that they conform to 

the Downtown Design standards, particularly quantity, size, and color requirements.  

 

Proposed colors correspond within the permitted downtown guidelines. 

 

Staff Recommendations:  

The colors submitted have been reviewed and comply with the Historic Colors of the historic 

color palette. 

 

Staff recommends approval of the Awning installation request as submitted. 

 

Applicant: 

725 W. Main Street LLP 

PO Box 460 

Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

Request: 

725 W. Main Street  

Downtown Design Review for Sign & Awning 

installation  

Tax Key No. ZOP00276 

Agenda Item #6B 









1 

 

STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: January 21, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description: 

The applicant is submitting a request for a General Development Plan (GDP) that would allow for the 

relocation of the building currently located at 832 Geneva St, and to be moved and located at 333 Center 

Street.   

The exceptions are site related to the building that is to be relocated and site setback dimensions which 

would include the street side setback that is in keeping with the historic neighborhood average, in 

addition to this request the applicant will raze the existing building located 333 Center Street.   

 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed General Development Plan (GDP): 

As part of the consideration of the requested GDP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed GDP; 

 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for GDPs; and, 

 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 

Staff Review Comments: 

No impacts to neighboring properties are anticipated. 

 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the GDP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed GDP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 

fact finding would be all of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

Applicant: 

Terence Pisano 

201 Broad St 

Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

Request:  

General Development Plan (GDP) 

Moving a building to 333 Center St with site 

setback acceptations, and Raze the current 

structure at 333 Center St.  

Tax Key No. ZOP00139 

 

Agenda Item: 7 



2 

 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is in harmony with the 

purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 

Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 

official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) maintains the desired consistency of land uses, 

land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is located in an area that will be adequately 

served by, and will not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or 

services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) outweigh all 

potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 

finding would be one or more of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is not in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is not in harmony with the 

purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 

Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 

official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 



3 

 

4.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) does not maintain the desired consistency of 

land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject 

property. 

5.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is not located in an area that will be adequately 

served by, and will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or 

services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) do not outweigh 

all potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

 

 

Staff Recommendation on the Proposed General Development Plan (GDP): 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed General 

Development Plan (GDP) as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above. 



1 

 

STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: January 21, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description: 

The applicant is submitting a request for a Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) that would allow for the 

relocation of the building currently located at 832 Geneva St, and to be moved and located at 333 Center 

Street.   

The exceptions are site related to the building that is to be relocated and site setback dimensions which 

would include the street side setback that is in keeping with the historic neighborhood average, in 

addition to this request the applicant will raze the existing building located 333 Center Street.   

Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP): 

As part of the consideration of the requested PIP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed PIP; 

 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for PIPs; and, 

 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 

Staff Review Comments: 

No impacts to neighboring properties are anticipated. 

 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the PIP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed PIP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 

fact finding would be all of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other 

plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

Applicant: 

Terence Pisano 

201 Broad St 

Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

Request:  

Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) 

Moving a building to 333 Center St with site 

setback acceptations, and Raze the current 

structure at 333 Center St.  

Tax Key No. ZOP00139 

 

Agenda Item: 8 



2 

 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is in harmony with the 

purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 

Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 

official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) maintains the desired consistency of land uses, 

land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is located in an area that will be adequately 

served by, and will not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or 

services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) outweigh all 

potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 

finding would be one or more of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is not in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is not in harmony with the 

purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 

Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 

official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) does not maintain the desired consistency of 

land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject 

property. 



3 

 

5.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is not located in an area that will be adequately 

served by, and will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or 

services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) do not outweigh 

all potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

 

 

Staff Recommendation on the Proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP): 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed Precise 

Implementation Plan (PIP) as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above. 



Location Map

Owner:

Architect:

R
E

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 O

F
 F

R
A

N
K

 J
O

H
N

S
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
C

E
 (

B
M

) 
T

O
 3

3
3
 C

E
N

T
E

R
 S

T
. 
 |
  
 1

2
/2

7
/2

0
1
8

SUBMITTAL DATE 12/27/2018

RELOCATION OF FRANK JOHNSON RESIDENCE (BM) TO 333 CENTER ST.
333 CENTER ST. LAKE GENEVA, WI 53147

2401 Inc. of Illinois
300 N. State St.- Suite 3812
Chicago, IL 60654
T 312.661.0140
F 312.661.0270

SHEET LIST
Sheet Number Sheet Name
COVER COVER SHEET
AS.0 LOCATION MAP
AS.1 EXISTING SITE PLAN
AS.2 PROPOSED SITE PLAN
AS.3 PROPOSED LANDSCAPE PLAN
A.0 NEW BSMT & FOUNDATION  PLAN
A.1 NEW 1ST & 2ND FLOOR PLAN
A.3 NEW EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
A.4 NEW EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
A.5 NEW BUILDING SECTION
MEP.1 NEW BSMT MEP PLAN

Terence Pisano
333 Center St.
Lake Geneva, WI 53147
T. (262)729-6537

The Frank Johnson Residence - Built in 1902

The Frank Johnson house is a brick-constructed example of the Queen Anne style. The 
entire building is constructed of cream bricks on a fieldstone foundation. The house has a 
two-story irregular plan with projecting two-story side bays and a projecting front gable. 
The bays and gable give the steeply-pitched hip roof a complex hip and gable form. The 
gable peaks are decorated with rusticated brick corbeling that suggests wood shingling and 
rusticated belt courses that suggest applied stickwork. The gables have central rectangular 
window openings. 

Rusticated brick corbeling is also used at the comers to suggest stone quoins and more 
rusticated bricks were used to construct the tabbed surrounds and large flat lintels that 
decorate the windows. The windows are largely similar-sized and filled with single-light 
sashes. Heavy, wood brackets are attached to the upper corners of the side walls' two-story 
bays. The entrances to the house are obscured behind a large veranda that is enclosed with 
large glass panels. Modem awnings have been attached to the original hipped porch roof. 
Two modem steel doors are the current entrances into the building: But, behind the glass 
enclosed porch, the original entrances and porch construction details are extant, including 
the columns supporting the roof. A lattice-panel base sits under the veranda. 

This house was built in 1902 for Frank Johnson. Johnson had a long-time grocery store on 
Main Street where he catered to families that wanted high quality and specialty groceries. 
In Lake Geneva, with its wealthy summer residents, this strategy was successful and is 
reflected in this large house. The house was threatened with demolition in the late 1990's, 
but with the help of the local Historic Preservation Commission and preservationists, it was 
saved. 

Narrative of the Frank Johnson PD Preservation Project:
Today, the Frank Johnson residence is again facing demolition as new 
development continues to change the landscape of the downtown Lake 
Geneva district. With the help of public officials, members of the LG 
community, the Lake Geneva Building and Planning Commission, The LG 
Historical Society and its associates, Local Contractors, the current owner 
Thomas George and local resident Terence Pisano the building can be 
saved again. By building a new foundation and moving the building just 
three blocks away to 333 Center St., the beautiful structure will be 
preserved for generations to come all the while keeping it in the 
commercial district of downtown Lake Geneva. It should be noted that NO 
trees, other that those on the PD site, will be affected by this move and the 
trees that are affected on the proposed PD will be preserved or replaced 
with equivalents.

The intent of this project is to create a Planned Development to 
successfully address the numerous variances required to facilitate a project 
of this nature. By Design the PD(Planned Development) for this project will 
maximize future use of the space(Neighborhood Office Zoning for mixed 
Commercial/Residential space) all the while making minimal changes to the 
structure and it's aesthetic in order to preserve its historic look, feel and 
layout. The grade of the new site in addition of the new foundation 
enhances the buildings opportunity for commercial use. The existing porch 
will also be preserved an enhanced as it will now rest on the new extended 
basement foundational footprint. 

The objective timeline of this project from start to completion is "Late 
January/Early February 2019" to "June/July 2019"

Terence Pisano will obtain the Financing for this PD project and the 
following outlines the high level steps required to complete this project: 
PIP Designed, Plan Development Review, City Council Approval, 2-3 Weeks 
On Site Preparation for Structural Move, Demolition of 333 Center St 
Structure, Excavation, New Foundation and Footings, Structural Move of 
Building(Involves City Traffic Control Coordination and Utility Coordination), 
Masonry work to connect New Foundation to Structure(30-60 days), Utility 
Re-Connects, Sewer/Drainage Build, Driveway/Basement/Landscape 
Concrete Pour, Exterior Deck/Stairs Build, Landscaping, Remedy unforeseen 
Issues and 2nd Fl. Renovations for bathroom and kitchen.



300 N. State St. #3812
Chicago IL 60654
P. 312 661 0140
E. 2401architects@gmail.com

REVISIONS

DATE ISSUED

PROJECT STATUS

SHEET NO.

SHEET TITLE

Architect

Owner

Terence Pisano
333 Center St.
Lake Geneva, WI 53147
T. 262-729-6537
E. terence@loosenupltd.com

AS.0

R
EL

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

FR
A

N
K

 J
O

H
N

SO
N

R
ES

ID
EN

C
E 

(B
M

) 
TO

 3
33

 C
EN

TE
R

 S
T.

LOCATION MAP

SUBMITTAL DATE
12/27/2018

12/27/2018

33
3 

CE
NT

ER
 S

T.
 L

AK
E 

GE
NE

VA
, W

I 5
31

47

LOCATION MAP

333 CENTER ST.(SUBJECT PROPERTY)

-ZONED NO (NEIGHBORHOOD OFFICE)

- 60' x 86' PROPERTY LOT SIZE (5,160 SF)

-

832 COOK ST.(BRICK & MORTAR)

- EXISTING BLDG TO BE RELOCATED
TO SUBJECT PROPERTY

Mark Date Description

mailto:2401architects@gmail.com
mailto:terence@loosenupltd.com


86.0'

86.0'

22.95' 25.6'

1
0
.3

9
'

2
5
.1

5
'

2 STORY FRAMED 
SINGLE FAMILY 

W/ BSMT 
#333

CENTER ST.

RETAINING 
WALL

SUNKEN 
YARD

ADJACENT PARKING LOT 

GRAVEL 
DRIVE

300 N. State St. #3812
Chicago IL 60654
P. 312 661 0140
E. 2401architects@gmail.com

REVISIONS

DATE ISSUED

PROJECT STATUS

SHEET NO.

SHEET TITLE

Architect

Owner

Terence Pisano
333 Center St.
Lake Geneva, WI 53147
T. 262-729-6537
E. terence@loosenupltd.com

AS.1

R
EL

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

FR
A

N
K

 J
O

H
N

SO
N

R
ES

ID
EN

C
E 

(B
M

) 
TO

 3
33

 C
EN

TE
R

 S
T.

EXISTING SITE
PLAN

SUBMITTAL DATE
12/27/2018

12/27/2018

33
3 

CE
NT

ER
 S

T.
 L

AK
E 

GE
NE

VA
, W

I 5
31

47

 3/16" = 1'-0"AS.1

1 EXISTING SITE PLAN

Mark Date Description

mailto:2401architects@gmail.com
mailto:terence@loosenupltd.com


86.0'

86.0'

14.17'

6.0'

 RELOCATED 2 STORY BRICK & 
FRAME W/ NEW BSMT-

(COMMERCIAL & RESIDENTIAL USE) 
#333

CENTER ST.

NEW 32"-60" TALL 
INTERLOCKING RETAINING 
WALL BLOCK SUNKEN YARD

ADJACENT PARKING LOT 

Existing Zoning: NO (Neighborhood Office)
Proposed Zoning: NO (Neighborhood Office) or Rezoned-
Commercial Use 96-206(4)(b) Permitted by Right; Zoning 
Variance Required for Commercial Apartment Use 98-206
(8)(a) in NO Zoning District
Min. Lot Area: 9,000 SF
Property Lot Area: 5,160 SF (Zoning Variance Required)
Min. Lot Width: 75 ft
Property Lot Width: 86 ft 
Min. Front Yard: 25 ft
Proposed Front Yard: 14.17 FT from North Property Line 
(Zoning Variance Required) & 10.39 ft from West property 
Line (10.39' Front Setback Previously Established by 
Zoning) 
Min. side yard: 6 ft
Proposed Side yard: 13.25' ft from East Property line & 6 
ft from South Property Line
New Building Footprint: 1,734 SF
Bldg Lot Coverage: 34%
Max. F.A.R.: 0.25
Proposed F.A.R.: ~0.58 (Zoning Variance Required)
Min. LSR: 40%
Proposed LSR: ~36% (Zoning Variance Required)
# of Stories: 2 Story w/ Attic & Full Basement
Max. Building Height: 35 FT
Proposed Building Height: +/- 35 ft (Top of Roof Ridge)
Min. Off Street Parking: 1 per 300 sf of gross floor 
area= 1,734 sf (1st Floor Area)/300 sf= 6 parking spaces 
Off Street Parking Provided: 4 On-site Parking Spaces 
(2 Employee & 2 Visitor) + 4 Off-site Parking Spaces 

Project Info- Plan A:

25
 F

T 
S.

B
.

6 
FT

 S
.B

.

6 FT S.B.

NOTE: 1ST FLOOR ABOVE 
GRADE +1'-9" ELEV.

10.39 FT S.B.

1
0
.3

9
'

1
3
.2

5
'

1
8
.3

3
'

12.83'

1
9
.4

2
'

NEW CONCRETE  DRIVE
19'-0" x 37'-0"

(4 PARKING SPACES-
2 EMPLOYEE & 2 VISITOR)

NEW CONCRETE 
WALK, TYP.

NEW CONCRETE STAIRS
(BSMT ACCESS)

NEW STAMPED CONCRETE OR 
PAVERS PATIO

NEW STAIRS
(2ND FL ACCESS)

NEW STAIRS
(1ST FL ACCESS)

NEW STAIRS
(1ST FL ACCESS)

N
E

W
 A

D
A

 R
A

M
P

 U
P

 

NEW STAIRS
(1ST FL ACCESS)

NEW ADA RAMP 
(LENGTH = 21'-0"  

@1:12 SLOPE)

NEW WINDOW 
WELL

NEW STAIRS

NEW WINDOW 
WELL

NEW CONC. RAMP 
(LENGTH = 10.39'  

@1:12 SLOPE)

NEW CONC. 
WALK

NEW CONCRETE  
APRON

EXISTING CONC. WALK

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 C
O

N
C

. 
W

A
L
K

NEW STAMPED 
CONCRETE OR 
PAVERS WALK

NEW PLANTING PER 
NEW LANDSCAPE PLAN

EXISTING TREE LINE 
TO REMAIN

RAISED PLANTER  
INTERLOCKING RETAINING 

WALL BLOCK  

UP

UP

UP

UPUP

NEW CONC. 
WALK

UP

UP

NEW COMMERCIAL 
BUSINESS GROUND SIGN

NEW COMMERCIAL 
BUSINESS GROUND SIGN

300 N. State St. #3812
Chicago IL 60654
P. 312 661 0140
E. 2401architects@gmail.com

REVISIONS

DATE ISSUED

PROJECT STATUS

SHEET NO.

SHEET TITLE

Architect

Owner

Terence Pisano
333 Center St.
Lake Geneva, WI 53147
T. 262-729-6537
E. terence@loosenupltd.com

AS.2

R
EL

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

FR
A

N
K

 J
O

H
N

SO
N

R
ES

ID
EN

C
E 

(B
M

) 
TO

 3
33

 C
EN

TE
R

 S
T.

PROPOSED SITE
PLAN

SUBMITTAL DATE
12/27/2018

12/27/2018

33
3 

CE
NT

ER
 S

T.
 L

AK
E 

GE
NE

VA
, W

I 5
31

47

 3/16" = 1'-0"AS.2

3 PROPOSED SITE PLAN

Mark Date Description

mailto:2401architects@gmail.com
mailto:terence@loosenupltd.com


CENTER ST.

ADJACENT PARKING LOT 

PRESERVE OR PROVIDE NEW 
TALL TREE OF SIMILAR SPECIES 
AT PARKWAY, TYP. OF 4 

EXISTING TREE LINE 
TO REMAIN

NEW TALL SHRUB 
ALONG LENGTH OF 
RETAINING WALL-
SPECIES & NUMBER TBD
(PROPERTY OWNER TO 
OBTAIN ADJACENT 
PROPERTY OWNER 
APPROVAL)

NEW SHRUB, TYP.-
SPECIES & NUMBER TBD

NEW ORNAMENTAL SMALL TREE 
OR TALL SHRUB, TYP. OF 3-
SPECIES TBD

NEW SOD

NEW SOD

NEW 
SOD

NEW SOD

NEW 
SOD

NEW 
SOD

NEW 
SOD

NEW 
SOD

NEW COMMERCIAL 
BUSINESS GROUND SIGN

NEW 32"-60" TALL 
INTERLOCKING RETAINING 

WALL BLOCK 

RAISED PLANTER  
INTERLOCKING RETAINING 

WALL BLOCK  

NEW TALL SHRUB, TYP.-
SPECIES & NUMBER TBD

206 LINEAR FT OF 
FOUNDATION  

NEW COMMERCIAL 
BUSINESS GROUND SIGN

 RELOCATED 2 STORY BRICK & 
FRAME W/ NEW BSMT-

(COMMERCIAL & RESIDENTIAL USE) 
#333

PLANT SCHEDULE

ORNAMENTAL SMALL TREE    10 LANDSCAPE POINTS

TALL SHADE TREE 30 LANDSCAPE POINTS

TALL SHRUB  5 LANDSCAPE POINTS

SMALL SHRUB  1 LANDSCAPE POINT

NOTE: 45 MIN. LANSCAPE POINTS PER 100 FEET OF BUILDING FOUNDATION REQUIRED 
FOR COMMERCIAL LAND USE ON 'NO' ZONING DISTRICT

2' - 8"

5
' -

 4
"

PRINTED 
SIGNCOMPOSITE SIGN 

POST & FRAME 

GROUND MOUNTED 
LED UPLIGHT 

300 N. State St. #3812
Chicago IL 60654
P. 312 661 0140
E. 2401architects@gmail.com

REVISIONS

DATE ISSUED

PROJECT STATUS

SHEET NO.

SHEET TITLE

Architect

Owner

Terence Pisano
333 Center St.
Lake Geneva, WI 53147
T. 262-729-6537
E. terence@loosenupltd.com

AS.3

R
EL

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

FR
A

N
K

 J
O

H
N

SO
N

R
ES

ID
EN

C
E 

(B
M

) 
TO

 3
33

 C
EN

TE
R

 S
T.

PROPOSED
LANDSCAPE PLAN

SUBMITTAL DATE
12/27/2018

12/27/2018

33
3 

CE
NT

ER
 S

T.
 L

AK
E 

GE
NE

VA
, W

I 5
31

47

 3/16" = 1'-0"AS.3

1 PROPOSED LANDSCAPE PLAN

 1/2" = 1'-0"AS.3

2 NEW TYP. GROUND SIGN ELEVATION

Mark Date Description

mailto:2401architects@gmail.com
mailto:terence@loosenupltd.com


2 3

A

12" REINFORCED CMU OR 
CONCRETE FOUNDATION 

WALLS

CONTINUOUS 
CONCRETE FOOTINGS 

 SPREAD 
CONCRETE 

FOOTING AT 
COLUMN, TYP. 

1

B

UP

1440 SF

UNFINISHED
BSMT

EXIT

1

A.5

FUTURE BATHROOM-
FINAL LOCATION TO 
BE DETERMINED

NEW 
WINDOW 

WELL

BSMT FLOOR AREA= 1,647 GSF

70 SF

STORAGE

NEW WINDOW 
WELL

NEW FOUNDATION 
WALLS

NEW STAIRS

300 N. State St. #3812
Chicago IL 60654
P. 312 661 0140
E. 2401architects@gmail.com

REVISIONS

DATE ISSUED

PROJECT STATUS

SHEET NO.

SHEET TITLE

Architect

Owner

Terence Pisano
333 Center St.
Lake Geneva, WI 53147
T. 262-729-6537
E. terence@loosenupltd.com

A.0

R
EL

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

FR
A

N
K

 J
O

H
N

SO
N

R
ES

ID
EN

C
E 

(B
M

) 
TO

 3
33

 C
EN

TE
R

 S
T.

NEW BSMT &
FOUNDATION
PLAN

SUBMITTAL DATE
12/27/2018

12/27/2018

33
3 

CE
NT

ER
 S

T.
 L

AK
E 

GE
NE

VA
, W

I 5
31

47

 1/4" = 1'-0"A.0

1 NEW FOUNDATION PLAN

A.0

2 NEW FOUNDATION 3D VIEW

 1/4" = 1'-0"A.0

3 NEW BSMT PLAN

Mark Date Description

mailto:2401architects@gmail.com
mailto:terence@loosenupltd.com


158 SF

OFFICE #2

277 SF

OFFICE #1

466 SF

LOBBY

ENTRY
UNISEX

DN

UP

356 SF

ENCLOSED
PORCH

EXIT

E
XIT

1

A.5

76 SF

ENCLOSED
PORCH

1ST FLOOR AREA= 1,734 GSF

NEW STAIRS & DECK- SEE 
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

RELOCATED 
STRUCTURE

NEW STAIRS & DECK- SEE 
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

NEW STAIRS & DECK- SEE 
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

NEW DOOR @ 
REMOVED WINDOW

NEW WINDOW @ 
REMOVED DOOR

NEW WALL @ 
EXISTING OPENING

NEW DOOR & 
STAIRS TO BSMT

NEW STAIRS & DECK- SEE 
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

NEW DOOR & 
RESTROOM 
LAYOUT

NEW 
WINDOW 

WELL

NEW WINDOW 
WELL

NOTE: ONLY NEW MODIFICATIONS 
NOTED ON FLOOR PLANS

NEW DOOR 
& WALL 

@ EXISTING 
OPENING

UP

UP

UP

N
E

W
 A

D
A

 R
A

M
P

 U
P

 

BEDROOM #1

CLOSET BEDROOM #2

BATHROOM

LIVING ROOM

KITCHEN

C
LO

SE
T

UP

DN

E
X

IT

EXIT

DINING

1

A.5

2ND FLOOR AREA= 1,264 GSF

NEW STAIRS & DECK- SEE 
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

NEW KITCHEN 
LAYOUT

NEW ENLARGED 
BATHROOM LAYOUT

DN

DN

NEW 2ND FLOOR ELECT. 
PANEL- 200A, 1 PH, 
3 WIRE , 120/240V

W/D
300 N. State St. #3812
Chicago IL 60654
P. 312 661 0140
E. 2401architects@gmail.com

REVISIONS

DATE ISSUED

PROJECT STATUS

SHEET NO.

SHEET TITLE

Architect

Owner

Terence Pisano
333 Center St.
Lake Geneva, WI 53147
T. 262-729-6537
E. terence@loosenupltd.com

A.1

R
EL

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

FR
A

N
K

 J
O

H
N

SO
N

R
ES

ID
EN

C
E 

(B
M

) 
TO

 3
33

 C
EN

TE
R

 S
T.

NEW 1ST & 2ND
FLOOR PLAN

SUBMITTAL DATE
12/27/2018

12/27/2018

33
3 

CE
NT

ER
 S

T.
 L

AK
E 

GE
NE

VA
, W

I 5
31

47

 1/4" = 1'-0"A.1

1 NEW 1ST FLOOR PLAN

 1/4" = 1'-0"A.1

2 NEW 2ND FLOOR PLAN

Mark Date Description

mailto:2401architects@gmail.com
mailto:terence@loosenupltd.com


GRADE 1
0' - 0"

2ND FLOOR
12' - 0"

1ST FLOOR
1' - 9"

ATTIC
21' - 0"

T/ ROOF
32' - 8 1/4"

NEW TREATED WOOD/COMPOSITE 
STAIRS & DECK W/ TREATED WOOD, 

COMPOSITE, VINYL, OR METAL RAILING 

NOTE: ONLY NEW MODIFICATIONS 
NOTED ON ELEVATION

NEW TREATED WOOD/COMPOSITE 
STAIRS & DECK W/ TREATED WOOD, 

COMPOSITE, VINYL, OR METAL RAILING 

NEW FULL LIGHT 
WOOD OR METAL 
DOOR AT REMOVED 
WINDOW

RELOCATED  
STRUCTURE ON NEW 
FOUNDATION

NEW TREATED 
WOOD/COMPOSITE RAMP 

W/ METAL RAILING 

GRADE 1
0' - 0"

2ND FLOOR
12' - 0"

1ST FLOOR
1' - 9"

ATTIC
21' - 0"

T/ ROOF
32' - 8 1/4"

GRADE 2
-5' - 0"

NOTE: ONLY NEW MODIFICATIONS 
NOTED ON ELEVATION

RELOCATED  
STRUCTURE ON NEW 
FOUNDATION

NEW EXPOSED CMU OR 
CONCRETE FOUNDATION WALL 
W/ THIN STONE VENEER OPTION

NEW ALUM. CLAD 
OR VINYL WINDOW 

NEW SOLID METAL 
EXTERIOR DOOR

NEW ALUM. CLAD 
OR VINYL WINDOW 

NEW TREATED 
WOOD/COMPOSITE STAIRS & 
DECK W/ TREATED WOOD, 
COMPOSITE, VINYL, OR METAL 
RAILING 

NEW  CONCRETE 
STAIRS TO BSMT 

NEW INTERLOCKING 
RETAINING WALL 

BLOCK  

NEW TREATED 
WOOD/COMPOSITE STAIRS & 

DECK W/ TREATED WOOD, 
COMPOSITE, VINYL, OR METAL 

RAILING 

300 N. State St. #3812
Chicago IL 60654
P. 312 661 0140
E. 2401architects@gmail.com

REVISIONS

DATE ISSUED

PROJECT STATUS

SHEET NO.

SHEET TITLE

Architect

Owner

Terence Pisano
333 Center St.
Lake Geneva, WI 53147
T. 262-729-6537
E. terence@loosenupltd.com

A.3

R
EL

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

FR
A

N
K

 J
O

H
N

SO
N

R
ES

ID
EN

C
E 

(B
M

) 
TO

 3
33

 C
EN

TE
R

 S
T.

NEW EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS

SUBMITTAL DATE
12/27/2018

12/27/2018

33
3 

CE
NT

ER
 S

T.
 L

AK
E 

GE
NE

VA
, W

I 5
31

47

 1/4" = 1'-0"A.3

2 NEW WEST ELEVATION

 1/4" = 1'-0"A.3

4 NEW EAST ELEVATION

Mark Date Description

mailto:2401architects@gmail.com
mailto:terence@loosenupltd.com


GRADE 1
0' - 0"

2ND FLOOR
12' - 0"

1ST FLOOR
1' - 9"

ATTIC
21' - 0"

T/ ROOF
32' - 8 1/4"

NOTE: ONLY NEW MODIFICATIONS 
NOTED ON ELEVATION

NEW TREATED 
WOOD/COMPOSITE RAMP 
W/ METAL RAILING 

NEW TREATED WOOD/COMPOSITE 
STAIRS & DECK W/ TREATED WOOD, 
COMPOSITE, VINYL, OR METAL 
RAILING 

NEW PLANTER 
RETAINING WALL BLOCK 

RELOCATED  
STRUCTURE ON NEW 
FOUNDATION

NEW TREATED WOOD/COMPOSITE 
STAIRS & DECK W/ TREATED WOOD, 

COMPOSITE, VINYL, OR METAL 
RAILING 

GRADE 1
0' - 0"

2ND FLOOR
12' - 0"

1ST FLOOR
1' - 9"

ATTIC
21' - 0"

T/ ROOF
32' - 8 1/4"

GRADE 2
-5' - 0"

NEW TREATED WOOD/COMPOSITE 
STAIRS & DECK W/ TREATED WOOD, 

COMPOSITE, VINYL, OR METAL 
RAILING NEW EXPOSED CMU OR 

CONCRETE FOUNDATION WALL 
W/ THIN STONE VENEER OPTION 

NEW ALUM. CLAD OR VINYL 
WINDOW 

NEW SOLID OR FULL LIGHT WOOD 
OR METAL EXTERIOR DOOR

NEW ALUM. CLAD OR VINYL 
WINDOW AT REMOVED DOOR 

NOTE: ONLY NEW MODIFICATIONS 
NOTED ON ELEVATION

RELOCATED  
STRUCTURE ON NEW 
FOUNDATION

NEW  CONCRETE STAIRS 
TO BSMT 

NEW TREATED 
WOOD/COMPOSITE STAIRS 
& DECK W/ TREATED 
WOOD, COMPOSITE, VINYL, 
OR METAL RAILING 

300 N. State St. #3812
Chicago IL 60654
P. 312 661 0140
E. 2401architects@gmail.com

REVISIONS

DATE ISSUED

PROJECT STATUS

SHEET NO.

SHEET TITLE

Architect

Owner

Terence Pisano
333 Center St.
Lake Geneva, WI 53147
T. 262-729-6537
E. terence@loosenupltd.com

A.4

R
EL

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

FR
A

N
K

 J
O

H
N

SO
N

R
ES

ID
EN

C
E 

(B
M

) 
TO

 3
33

 C
EN

TE
R

 S
T.

NEW EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS

SUBMITTAL DATE
12/27/2018

12/27/2018

33
3 

CE
NT

ER
 S

T.
 L

AK
E 

GE
NE

VA
, W

I 5
31

47

Mark Date Description

mailto:2401architects@gmail.com
mailto:terence@loosenupltd.com


GRADE 1
0' - 0"

2ND FLOOR
12' - 0"

1ST FLOOR
1' - 9"

BSMT
-8' - 4"

ATTIC
21' - 0"

T/ ROOF
32' - 8 1/4"

GRADE 2
-5' - 0"

SUNKEN YARD

RELOCATED  
STRUCTURE ON 
NEW FOUNDATION

NEW 
FOUNDATION

CENTER ST.

NEW 
WINDOW 

WELL

UNFINISHED 
BSMT 9

' -
 1

"

EXISTING TREE 
LINE

300 N. State St. #3812
Chicago IL 60654
P. 312 661 0140
E. 2401architects@gmail.com

REVISIONS

DATE ISSUED

PROJECT STATUS

SHEET NO.

SHEET TITLE

Architect

Owner

Terence Pisano
333 Center St.
Lake Geneva, WI 53147
T. 262-729-6537
E. terence@loosenupltd.com

A.5

R
EL

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

FR
A

N
K

 J
O

H
N

SO
N

R
ES

ID
EN

C
E 

(B
M

) 
TO

 3
33

 C
EN

TE
R

 S
T.

NEW BUILDING
SECTION

SUBMITTAL DATE
12/27/2018

12/27/2018

33
3 

CE
NT

ER
 S

T.
 L

AK
E 

GE
NE

VA
, W

I 5
31

47

 1/4" = 1'-0"A.5

1 NEW BUILDING SECTION

Mark Date Description

mailto:2401architects@gmail.com
mailto:terence@loosenupltd.com


1

A.5

UP

UNFINISHED
BSMT

WINDOW 
WELL

STORAGE

NEW 1 1/2" WATER LINE TO EXISTING 
CITY WATER CONNECTION

NEW 1 1/2" WATER 
METER

NEW 6" SAN. W/ CLEANOUT TO 
EXISTING 15" CITY SANITARY 

SEWER MAIN

NEW GROUNDWATER SUMP 
PIT & SUMP PUMP- FINAL 
LOCATION TBD

NEW SANITARY SUMP PIT & SUMP 
PUMP- FINAL LOCATION TBD

NEW 6" PIPE CONNECTION TO EXISTING 42" 
CITY STORM SEWER 

SANITARY LINE (ABOVE GROUND) 

PLUMBING LEGEND

SANITARY LINE (UNDERGROUND) 

WH WH

NEW CWS FOR BSMT, 1ST, & 2ND FLOOR 
PLUMB. FIXTURES

NEW HWS FOR BSMT & 1ST FLOOR 
PLUMB. FIXTURES

NEW HWS FOR 2ND FLOOR 
PLUMB. FIXTURES

FD

NEW 4" SANITARY FOR 1ST & 2ND FLOOR 
PLUMB. FIXTURES

CO

NEW 4" SANITARY FOR BSMT 
PLUMB. FIXTURES

COLD WATER SUPPLY  

HOT WATER SUPPLY

FUTURE BATHROOM-
FINAL LOCATION TO 
BE DETERMINED

NEW ELECTRICAL SERVICE BOX 
W/METER(S) AT 60" ABOVE 
GRADE

NEW BSMT & 1ST FLOOR 
ELECT. PANEL- 200A, 

1 PH, 3 WIRE , 120/240V
(SEE SHEET A.1 FOR 2ND 

FLOOR ELECT. PANEL)

ALLIANT ENERGY MAIN 
SERVICE WIRE/CONDUIT RISER 
TO OVERHEAD UTILITY POLE 
CONNECTION

CO

D.S

D.S D.S

NEW 6" PIPE 

D.S

NEW CONDENSOR(S) ON NEW 
CONCRETE PAD

NEW 1 1/4" GAS 
SERVICE CONNECTION 

& METER(S)

WC-1FIRST FLOOR 

BASEMENT FLOOR FD-1

NEW 6" SAN. W/ CLEANOUT TO 
EXISTING 15" CITY SANITARY 

SEWER MAIN 

LAV-1

SK-1

WC-1

LAV-1 LAV-1

SH-1 TB-2

4x5 VENT 
THRU ROOF

2"

1 1/2"

3"

3"

ROOF

4"

GRADE 

4"

2"

18" DIA. GROUNDWATER 
SUMP PIT W/ SUMP PUMP 
- PROVIDE 2" DISCHARGE
PIPE W/ CHECK VALVE

NEW 6" STANDPIPE 

4" PERIMETER DRAIN 
TILE TO SUMP PUMP

4"

4"

4"

4"4"

36" DIA. SANITARY SUMP 
PIT W/ SUMP PUMP -
PROVIDE 4" VENT PIPE, 2"  
DISCHARGE PIPE W/ 
BALL/GATE & CHECK 
VALVE, & GAS-TIGHT MTL 
COVER

WC-1

LAV-1

TB-1

2"

4"

1 1/2"2"6"
4"

4"

2"

4"

3" 1 1/2"
2"

2" 1 1/2" 2"

1 1/2"

3"

1 1/2"1 1/2"2" 1 1/2" 1 1/2"

2" 2"

1 1/2" 1 1/2"

4"

3"

1 1/2"1 1/2"

2" 2"
4"

1 1/2"1 1/2"

C.O.
ROUGH-IN FOR FUTURE 
BASEMENT BATHROOM

-

SUMP DEPTH @36" MIN. 
BELOW LOWEST INLET 

4x5 VENT 
THRU ROOF

4"

4"

_
SUMP DEPTH @24" MIN. 
BELOW LOWEST INLET 

SECOND FLOOR 

LAV-1

1 1/2"

1 1/2"

DW-1

NEW 6" PIPE W/ CLEANOUT TO 
EXISTING 42" CITY STORM SEWER 
CONNECTION 

6"C.O.

NEW DOWNSPOUT (DS) W/ 
ADAPTER

4" DRAIN AT WINDOW WELL 
TO PERIMETER DRAIN TILE 
BELOW (TYP.) 

300 N. State St. #3812
Chicago IL 60654
P. 312 661 0140
E. 2401architects@gmail.com

REVISIONS

DATE ISSUED

PROJECT STATUS

SHEET NO.

SHEET TITLE

Architect

Owner

Terence Pisano
333 Center St.
Lake Geneva, WI 53147
T. 262-729-6537
E. terence@loosenupltd.com

MEP.1

R
EL

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

FR
A

N
K

 J
O

H
N

SO
N

R
ES

ID
EN

C
E 

(B
M

) 
TO

 3
33

 C
EN

TE
R

 S
T.

NEW BSMT MEP
PLAN

SUBMITTAL DATE
12/27/2018

12/27/2018

33
3 

CE
NT

ER
 S

T.
 L

AK
E 

GE
NE

VA
, W

I 5
31

47

 1/4" = 1'-0"MEP.1

1 NEW BASEMENT PLUMBING PLAN

 3/8" = 1'-0"MEP.1

2 SANITARY RISER DIAGRAM

Mark Date Description

mailto:2401architects@gmail.com
mailto:terence@loosenupltd.com


REVISIONS

DATE ISSUED

PROJECT STATUS

SHEET NO.

SHEET TITLE

P.

SUBMITTAL DATE
12/27/2018

12/27/2018

R
EL

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

FR
A

N
K

 J
O

H
N

SO
N

R
ES

ID
EN

C
E 

(B
M

)
TO

 3
33

 C
EN

TE
R

ST
.

33
3

CE
NT

ER
 S

T.
 L

AK
E 

GE
NE

VA
, W

I 5
31

47

 1/4" = 1'-0"P.1

1

Mark Date Description

300 N. State St. #3812
Chicago IL 60654
P. 312 661 0140
E. 2401architects@gmail.com

Architect

P.
E.

mailto:E.2401architects@gmail.com


REVISIONS

DATE ISSUED

PROJECT STATUS

SHEET NO.

SHEET TITLE

P.

SUBMITTAL DATE
12/27/2018

12/27/2018

R
EL

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

FR
A

N
K

 J
O

H
N

SO
N

R
ES

ID
EN

C
E 

(B
M

)
TO

 3
33

 C
EN

TE
R

ST
.

33
3

CE
NT

ER
 S

T.
 L

AK
E 

GE
NE

VA
, W

I 5
31

47

Mark Date Description

300 N. State St. #3812
Chicago IL 60654
P. 312 661 0140
E. 2401architects@gmail.com

Architect

P.
E.

mailto:E.2401architects@gmail.com


REVISIONS

DATE ISSUED

PROJECT STATUS

SHEET NO.

SHEET TITLE

P.

SUBMITTAL DATE

R
EL

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

FR
A

N
K

 J
O

H
N

SO
N

R
ES

ID
EN

C
E 

(B
M

)
TO

 3
33

 C
EN

TE
R

ST
.

33
3

CE
NT

ER
 S

T.
 L

AK
E 

GE
NE

VA
, W

I 5
31

47

Mark Date Description

300 N. State St. #3812
Chicago IL 60654
P. 312 661 0140
E. 2401architects@gmail.com

Architect

P.
E.

REVISIONS

DATE ISSUED

PROJECT STATUS

SHEET NO.

SHEET TITLE

P.

SUBMITTAL DATE

R
EL

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

FR
A

N
K

 J
O

H
N

SO
N

R
ES

ID
EN

C
E 

(B
M

)
TO

 3
33

 C
EN

TE
R

ST
.

33
3

CE
NT

ER
 S

T.
 L

AK
E 

GE
NE

VA
, W

I 5
31

47

Mark Date Description

300 N. State St. #3812
Chicago IL 60654
P. 312 661 0140
E. 2401architects@gmail.com

Architect

P.
E.

REVISIONS

DATE ISSUED

PROJECT STATUS

SHEET NO.

SHEET TITLE

P.

SUBMITTAL DATE

R
EL

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

FR
A

N
K

 J
O

H
N

SO
N

R
ES

ID
EN

C
E 

(B
M

)
TO

 3
33

 C
EN

TE
R

ST
.

33
3

CE
NT

ER
 S

T.
 L

AK
E 

GE
NE

VA
, W

I 5
31

47

Mark Date Description

300 N. State St. #3812
Chicago IL 60654
P. 312 661 0140
E. 2401architects@gmail.com

Architect

P.
E.

REVISIONS

DATE ISSUED

PROJECT STATUS

SHEET NO.

SHEET TITLE

P.

SUBMITTAL DATE

R
EL

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

FR
A

N
K

 J
O

H
N

SO
N

R
ES

ID
EN

C
E 

(B
M

)
TO

 3
33

 C
EN

TE
R

ST
.

33
3

CE
NT

ER
 S

T.
 L

AK
E 

GE
NE

VA
, W

I 5
31

47

Mark Date Description

300 N. State St. #3812
Chicago IL 60654
P. 312 661 0140
E. 2401architects@gmail.com

Architect

P.
E.

12/27/2018

mailto:E.2401architects@gmail.com
mailto:E.2401architects@gmail.com
mailto:E.2401architects@gmail.com
mailto:E.2401architects@gmail.com


300 N. State St. #3812
Chicago IL 60654
P. 312 661 0140
E. 2401architects@gmail.com

REVISIONS

DATE ISSUED

PROJECT STATUS

SHEET NO.

SHEET TITLE

Architect

Owner

Terence Pisano
333 Center St.
Lake Geneva, WI 53147
T. 262-729-6537
E. terence@loosenupltd.com

P.5

R
EL

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

FR
A

N
K

 J
O

H
N

SO
N

R
ES

ID
EN

C
E 

(B
M

) 
TO

 3
33

 C
EN

TE
R

 S
T.

PROJECT IMAGES

SUBMITTAL DATE
12/27/2018

12/27/2018

33
3 

CE
NT

ER
 S

T.
 L

AK
E 

GE
NE

VA
, W

I 5
31

47

Mark Date Description

mailto:2401architects@gmail.com
mailto:terence@loosenupltd.com


1 

 

STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: January 21, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description: 

The applicant is submitting a request for a Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) that would allow for the 

development of a Brewery, Tap-Room, & Gift Shops to be located at 727 Geneva Street.  

The alterations to the exterior building dimension would include the razing of the existing garage in the 

rear of the property and the subsequent addition to the primary building in that general area. The other 

exterior renovations are to the deck and patio areas, to include unique sign structures.  

 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP): 

As part of the consideration of the requested PIP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed PIP; 

 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for PIPs; and, 

 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 

Staff Review Comments: 

No impacts to neighboring properties are anticipated. 

 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the PIP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed PIP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 

fact finding would be all of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City. 

Applicant: 

Daniel Schuld 

281 Yerkes Ave 

Hampshire, IL 60140 

Request:  

Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) 

Brewery, Tap-Room, Gift Shops 

727 Geneva Street 

Tax Key No. ZOP00157 

 

Agenda Item: 9 



2 

 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is in harmony with the 

purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 

Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 

official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) maintains the desired consistency of land uses, 

land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is located in an area that will be adequately 

served by, and will not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or 

services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) outweigh all 

potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 

finding would be one or more of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is not in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is not in harmony with the 

purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 

Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 

official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) does not maintain the desired consistency of 

land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject 

property. 



3 

 

5.  The proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) is not located in an area that will be adequately 

served by, and will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or 

services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) do not outweigh 

all potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

 

 

Staff Recommendation on the Proposed Precise Implementation Plan (PIP): 

If the Plan Commission members feel the submittal is acceptable - 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed Precise 

Implementation Plan (PIP) as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above. 

































































SIGNAGE EXISTS
ON BOTH SIDES
OF BELL TOWER



 

 

STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: January 21, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description: 

The applicant is submitting to amend the Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) to locate a second 

floor roof structure on the exterior deck area and install temporary windows to assist with 

customer comfort. 

The change will require the recommendation for or against the amendment on a site plan review. 

The proposed request does not require additional parking spaces. 

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan: 

Wisconsin law requires all Zoning Map Amendments (including Precise Implementation Plan 

(PIP) be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, and particularly with the Future Land Use 

Map. This map recommends the land use category for the subject property. This category allows 

for neighborhood-scale mixed use development. The proposed PIP zoning is consistent with the 

Comprehensive Plan. 

Relation to Base Zoning Standards: 

All Planned Developments must explicitly identify any flexibilities being requested from base 

zoning standards in the most comparable regular zoning district. In this instance, the Planned 

Development (PD), the current zoning of the property, provides that comparison zoning district. 

The project is requesting the following:  

As no other changes are proposed to the site that would change existing conditions, no other 

flexibilities are requested.  

 

Approved Land Uses: 

The PIP enables the following land uses as permitted: 

 Planned Development (PD) 

 

Zoning Map Amendment / PIP - Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the Proposed Zoning Map Amendment / PIP 

Applicant: 

Oakfire Properties LLC. 

831 Wrigley Dr. 

Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

Request:  

Oakfire to Amend Precise Implementation Plan 

(PIP) to allow for the 2
nd

 floor Roof system and 

temporary window installation 

Tax Key No. ZOP00340 

Agenda Item: 10 

 



 

 

As part of the consideration of a requested Planned Development / Precise Implementation Plan 

(PIP) step, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed Zoning 

Map amendment to PIP; 

 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for Zoning Map amendments; and, 

 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the PIP for Recommendation to Common Council: 

 

A proposed PIP must be reviewed by the standards for all Zoning Map Amendments, below: 

 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the 

appropriate fact finding would be in agreement with Items 1 and 3, and one or more factors 

of Item 2, of the following. 

 

1. The proposed PIP furthers the purposes of the Zoning Ordinance as outlined in 

Section 98-005 and the applicable rules and regulations of the Wisconsin Department 

of Natural Resources (DNR) and the Federal Emergency Management Agency 

(FEMA). 

 

2. One or more of the following factors have arisen that are not properly addressed on 

the current Official Zoning Map: 

a. The designations of the Official Zoning Map should be brought into 

conformity with the Comprehensive Plan; 

b. A mistake was made in mapping on the Official Zoning Map; 

c. Factors have changed, making the subject property more appropriate for the 

proposed GDP zoning; 

d. Growth patterns or rates have changed, thereby creating the need for an 

amendment to the Official Zoning Map. 

 

3. The proposed PIP amendment to the Official Zoning Map maintains the desired 

consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the 

environs of the subject property. 

 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the 

appropriate fact finding would be in disagreement with at least one of Items 1, 2, or 3 of the 

following: 

 

1. The proposed PIP does not further the purposes of the Zoning Ordinance as outlined 

in Section 98-005 and the applicable rules and regulations of the Wisconsin 

Department of Natural Resources (DNR) and the Federal Emergency Management 

Agency (FEMA). 

 

2. One or more of the following factors have not arisen that are not properly addressed 

on the current Official Zoning Map: 



 

 

a. The designations of the Official Zoning Map should be brought into 

conformity with the Comprehensive Plan; 

b. A mistake was made in mapping on the Official Zoning Map; 

c. Factors have changed, making the subject property more appropriate for the 

proposed PIP zoning; 

d. Growth patterns or rates have changed, thereby creating the need for an 

amendment to the Official Zoning Map. 

 

3. The proposed PIP amendment to the Official Zoning Map does not maintain the 

desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related 

to the environs of the subject property. 

 

Staff Recommendation on the Precise Implementation Plan (PIP): 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the Precise 

Implementation Plan (PIP) as submitted, all other zoning requirements have been met. 

 









































1 

 

STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: January 21, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description: 

The applicant is submitting a request for a General Development Plan (GDP) that would allow for the 

development of a new Single Family Development to be located at the former Regent Hill subdivision 

on LaSalle Street.  

The applicant is requesting to construct 58 new single family dwellings, with the Planned Development 

request that would allow for the reduction in lot sizes, private Cul-de-Sac’s road ways.  

The property is located in the Multi-Family Residential – 8 (MR-8) zoning district. 

 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed General Development Plan (GDP): 

As part of the consideration of the requested GDP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed GDP; 

 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for GDPs; and, 

 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 

Staff Review Comments: 

No impacts to neighboring properties are anticipated. 

 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the GDP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed GDP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 

fact finding would be all of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

Applicant: 

Omega Homes 

201 O’Connor Dr. suite 101 

Elkhorn, WI 53121 

Request: Continuation of the public hearing 

General Development Plan (GDP) 

Vistas of Lake Geneva located on LaSalle St. 

58 Single Family Dwelling Development 

Tax Key No. ZA424700001 

 

Agenda Item: 11 



2 

 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is in harmony with the 

purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 

Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 

official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) maintains the desired consistency of land uses, 

land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is located in an area that will be adequately 

served by, and will not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or 

services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) outweigh all 

potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 

finding would be one or more of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is not in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is not in harmony with the 

purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 

Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 

official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 



3 

 

4.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) does not maintain the desired consistency of 

land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject 

property. 

5.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is not located in an area that will be adequately 

served by, and will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or 

services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) do not outweigh 

all potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

 

 

Staff Recommendation on the Proposed General Development Plan (GDP): 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed General 

Development Plan (GDP) as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above. 



1 
 

STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: January 21, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description: 

The applicant is submitting a request for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) that would allow for the 

candidate to raze or remove the structure in accordance with the zoning requirements found in Section 

98-913(5)(c) in the Downtown Design Overlay District, the existing building that is located at 832 

Geneva Street.  

The applicant is requesting to construct a new 5600 square foot commercial building at 832 Geneva 

Street which will have retail area & coffee shop, in order to construct this proposed building a 

Conditional Use Permit must be approved to “Raze or Remove” the existing structure 

The property is located in the Central Business (CB) zoning district, onsite parking is not required in the 

Central Business district. 

 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 

As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 

 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 

 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 

Staff Review Comments: 

No impacts to neighboring properties are anticipated. 

 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 

fact finding would be all of the following: 

Applicant: 

House Around the Corner 

3389 South Lake Shore Dr. 

Delavan, WI 53115 

Request: Continuation of the public hearing 

Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 

Raze or Remove the Existing Commercial 

Building - 832 Geneva Street 

Tax Key No. ZOP00252 

 

Agenda Item: 12 



2 
 

1.  In general, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 

other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 

the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land 

use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is located in an area that will be adequately served 

by, and will not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or services 

provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) outweigh all 

potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 

finding would be one or more of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is not in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is not in harmony with the 

purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 

Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 

official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 



3 
 

4.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) does not maintain the desired consistency of land 

uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is not located in an area that will be adequately 

served by, and will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or 

services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) do not outweigh all 

potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

 

 

Staff Recommendation on the Proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed Conditional 

Use Permit (CUP) as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. If they are in agreement 

with the above finding. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above. 

 
 



1 

 

STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: January 21, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description: 

The applicant is submitting a request for a General Development Plan (GDP) that would allow for the 

development of a new commercial building to be erected and located at 832 Geneva Street.  

The applicant is requesting to construct a new 5600 square foot commercial building at 832 Geneva 

Street which will have retail area & coffee shop. The proposed site design allows for added green space 

for outdoor seating.  

The property is located in the Central Business (CB) zoning district, onsite parking is not required in the 

Central Business district. 

 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed General Development Plan (GDP): 

As part of the consideration of the requested GDP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed GDP; 

 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for GDPs; and, 

 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 

Staff Review Comments: 

No impacts to neighboring properties are anticipated. 

 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the GDP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed GDP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 

fact finding would be all of the following: 

Applicant: 

House Around the Corner 

3389 South Lake Shore Dr. 

Delavan, WI 53115 

Request: Continuation of the public hearing 

General Development Plan (GDP) 

New 5600 sq. ft. Commercial Building 

832 Geneva Street 

Tax Key No. ZOP00252 

 

Agenda Item: 13 



2 

 

1.  In general, the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is in harmony with the 

purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 

Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 

official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) maintains the desired consistency of land uses, 

land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is located in an area that will be adequately 

served by, and will not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or 

services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) outweigh all 

potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 

finding would be one or more of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is not in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is not in harmony with the 

purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 

Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 

official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 



3 

 

4.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) does not maintain the desired consistency of 

land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject 

property. 

5.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is not located in an area that will be adequately 

served by, and will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or 

services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) do not outweigh 

all potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

 

 

Staff Recommendation on the Proposed General Development Plan (GDP): 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed General 

Development Plan (GDP) as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. If they are in 

agreement with the above finding. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above. 

 


	1. January 21 2019 Agenda
	3. December 17 2018 Plan Commission Minutes
	6.a. 737 W Main Street Downtown Design
	6.b. 725 W Main Street Downtown Design
	7. and 8. 333 Center Street GDP & PIP
	9. 727 Geneva Street PIP Revised
	10. 831 Wrigley Drive PIP
	11. Vistas of Lake Geneva GDP continuation
	12. 832 Brick and Mortar CUP continuation
	13. 832 Brick and Mortar GDP continuation



